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Stipe No. 5 - NEWARK “AIRWAY TRAFFIC CONTROL STATION” - Dec. 1, 1935

stablished, funded and staffed
E by the scheduled airlines on

Dec. 1, 1935 at Newark, NJ,
this is the world’s first “AIRWAY
TRAFFIC CONTROL STATION,”
as it was then called. It was located
on the floor below the office of the
Chief Controller of the Newark
Tower, which was just below the con-
trol tower cab.

The concept for these centers origi-
nated with Earl
Ward, American

with information concerning the po-
sition and altitude of each of their re-
spective flights operating within the
vicinity of Chicago. Should a conflict
become evident, the concerned air-
lines, through mutual coordination,
would suggest changes in altitude or
other maneuvers for the radio opera-
tors to relay to their respective pilots.
Ward was sufficiently impressed with
Glen’s procedures to the extent that
he proposed an immediate opera-

coordinator who would facilitate
the development of solutions to any
potential conflicts between flights
of different companies.

With these changes, and the con-
tinued success of the Chicago trials,
Ward now encouraged the airlines
to adopt more permanent arrange-
ments for such procedures at major
airline stations. To accomplish this,
Ward proposed the formation of
small airline corpora-
tions to operate facili-

Airlines’ Operations
Manager at Chi-
cago, and eventually
a Vice President of
American Airlines.
As the airlines began
flying on instru-
ments in the early
thirties, Ward, an
experienced pilot
himself, became
concerned about the
possibility of mid-
air collisions during
instrument flight,
especially at the
busier airports

ties, which were to be
known as “airway traf-
fic control stations,”
at Newark, Cleveland
and Chicago. New-
ark, then the major
airport for the New
York Metropolitan
area, was agreed upon
by the participating
airlines as the first lo-
cation for such a facil-
ity. Funded com-
pletely by the partici-
pating airlines, and
staffed with airline
personnel, the Newark

where many differ-
ent airlines were op-
erating indepen-
dently of one an-
other. In 1934, Ward was convinced
that the situation demanded some
sort of immediate coordinated action
among the airlines to avoid a poten-
tial disaster which could ruin the bur-
geoning air transport industry.

At that time, Glen Gilbert was an
Asst. Flight Superintendent for AA at
Chicago, and Earl Ward assigned
Glen to develop procedures that
might be used by the airlines to re-
duce the risk of mid-air collisions
between flights operating on instru-
ments.

Glen’s initial procedures called for all
airline radio operators at Chicago to
call their counterparts in each airline
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tional test at Chicago.

Ward called a meeting of his counter-
parts in each of the airlines at Chi-
cago and won their approval of the
proposed test. To insure proper un-
derstanding amongst all participants,
Ward had Glen prepare a document
which each airline signed, thus be-
coming the airline industry’s first In-
terline Agreement. Conducted in
1935, the tests were proving quite
successful and airline support was
increasing. It became obvious that co-
ordination would be facilitated by es-
tablishing some sort of interphone
between the airlines, enabling them
to call the information to a central

Airway Traffic Control
Station was opened on
Dec. 1, 1935.

The airlines quickly
established additional centers at
Cleveland, OH and Chicago, IL,
each funded completely by airlines
and staffed with airline personnel.

(See ATCA Bulletin No. 61-7 dated
July 1961 for story about Earl
Ward, together with information
about the early Newark Center. See
Slide No. 71 on Photo CD #2719
or Dupe No. 1232 for photo of
Earl Ward.)

In 1936, Earl Ward was hired by
the U. S. Dept. of Commerce to
head the newly formed Federal Air-
ways Operations Division.



